
CCITYY OFF PINEE LAKE,, GEORGIAA 
AGENDAA 

 TH,, 202 @@ 6:00PMM

DRIVE,, PINEE LAKE,, GAA 30072

NOTE: All attendees are reminded to silence cellular phones and other devices 
that may cause interruption of the session proceedings. 

CALL TO ORDER �  MEETING

ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMUNICATIONS

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA OF THE DAY

NEW BUSINESS

PUBLIC COMMENTS � 3 minutes each please 

REPORTS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

Reports/Comments 

d. Mayor
e. City Council

Information for �The Pine Lake News� eblast. 

ADJOURNMENT

MAYOR
Brandy Hall 

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Jean Bordeaux, Mayor pro tem
Jeff Goldberg
Tom Ramsey
Thomas Torrent
Augusta Woods

CITY OF PINE LAKE
425 ALLGOOD ROAD
P.O. BOX 1325
PINE LAKE, GA 30072

404-999-4901

www.pinelakega.net

































CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 1 of 11

Call to Order: Mayor Hall called the Work Session to order at 6:00pm.

Present: Mayor Brandy Hall, Mayor pro tem Bordeaux, Council Member Jeff 
Goldberg, Council Member Thomas Torrent, Council Member Tom Ramsey, and 
Council Member Augusta Woods. Also present were Interim City Manager Billy 
Beckett, Chief of Police Sarai Y’hudah-Green, City Attorney Susan Moore, Public 
Works Special Projects Manager Bernard Kendrick, and Assistant City Clerk Ned 
Dagenhard.

Announcements and Communications

Mayor Hall mentioned that the final meeting of the DeKalb County Board of 
Commissioners had taken place, and thanked exiting-Commissioner Steve 
Bradshaw for his continued support of the City of Pine Lake.

The Mayor continued by commenting on the completed Courthouse renovation
and “open house” the previous weekend, thanking Special Projects Manager 
Bernard Kendrick, and any residence who attended the open house.

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux announced that she had been notified of the signing of 
the SPLOST Intergovernmental Agreement with DeKalb for an additional $2
million to be dispersed to the City of Pine Lake. Ms. Bordeaux continued by 
expressing direct thanks to former-City Manager ChaQuias Miller-Thornton, 
former-City Attorney Susan Moore, and “Mayor emeritus” Melanie Hammet, 
crediting these women with the lobbying success.

Council Member Goldberg stated that he had attended his first meeting as a
Member of the Georgia Municipal Association’s Diversity Equity and Inclusion 
Council. The first order of business, he added, was changing the name, citing the 
current political climate. 



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 2 of 11

Adoption of the Minutes

November 26th, 2024 – Regular Meeting

December 10th, 2024 – Work Session

Council Member Rasmey moved to adopt the Minutes from the previous two 
meetings; Council Member Torrent seconded.

No discussion took place.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.

Adoption of the Agenda of the Day

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux moved to adopt the Agenda of the Day; Council 
Member Woods seconded.

No discussion took place.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 3 of 11

Public Hearing

1. Proposed FY2025 Budget

Mayor Hall opened the public hearing at 6:06pm.

The public hearing took place, wherein Mayor pro tem Bordeaux advised City 
Council and the public of her correction of a formatting error in the FY2025 
Budget document, which she corrected. All other aspects of the budget remained 
unchanged, namely figures.

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett gave a summary of budget categories, and 
reasserted his recommendation of amending the FY2025 Budget via resolution 
early in 2025 to reflect City Council priorities.

Finance Director Danny Lamonte introduced himself—citing 20 years of local 
government experience—adding that he looks forward to working with the City of 
Pine Lake.

Seeing no further requests for comment, Mayor Hall closed the public hearing at 
6:17pm.

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux moved to adopt the FY2025 Budget; Council Member 
Ramsey seconded.

No further discussion took place.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 4 of 11

New Business

1. Appointment of Mr. Stanely Hawthorne – City Manager

Council Member Torrent moved to appoint Mr. Stanley Hawthorne as City 
Manager of Pine Lake; Council Member Goldberg seconded.

Council Member Torrent stated that he felt “very good” about Mr. Hawthorne, 
adding that a “big weight has been lifted” off of the City.

Mayor Hall thanked Interim City Manager Billy Beckett for his service to the City, 
a sentiment that was echoed by other City Council Members.

Council Member Goldberg stated that Mr. Hawthorne was not the only candidate 
interested in the position, adding that he felt this spoke to the attractiveness of 
working in Pine Lake.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.

2. Appointment of Mr. Chris Balch – City Attorney

Council Member Ramsey moved to appoint Mr. Chris Balch as City Attorney of
Pine Lake; Mayor pro tem Bordeaux seconded.

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett advised that Mr. Balch came “highly 
recommended” from the two previous City Attorneys of Pine Lake, Laura 
Henderson and Susan Moore.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 5 of 11

3. Appointment of Ms. Ansley Sluss – Public Defender

Council Member Woods moved to appoint Ms. Ansley Sluss as Public Defender 
of Pine Lake; Council Member Torrent seconded.

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett stated that the City has not previously retained 
a Public Defender, but rather reached out to a rolodex of local attorneys on an 
as-needed basis. Mr. Beckett recommended one of these attorneys—Ms. Ansley 
Sluss—who has agreed to do one session per month on a $300 monthly 
retainer.

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux inquired as to whether twelve sessions was sufficient. 
Asst. City Clerk Dagenhard affirmed this, speaking to the function of Municipal 
Court, stating that bench trials fall an alternating schedule.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.

4. Contractual Agreement with Professional Probation Services

Council Member Ramsey moved to approve the Contractual Agreement with 
PPS; Mayor pro tem Bordeaux seconded.

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett stated that the contract had been reviewed by 
City Attorney Moore, who recommended changes agreed to by Professional 
Probation Services. Mr. Beckett added that this was the current probation 
servicer, and that the service is paid for through fines paid by the individual, not 
city funds.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 6 of 11

5. One-Month Extension of Contractual Agreement with Special Projects 
Manager Bernard Kendrick

Council Member Goldberg moved to approve the One-Month Extension of 
Contractual Agreement with Mr. Kendrick; Council Member Woods seconded.

Mayor Hall stated that Mr. Kendrick’s current contract was set to expire 
12/31/2024, and that Mr. Kendrick had graciously agreed to a one-month 
extension while awaiting further budget and contract review by the entering-City 
Manager.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.

6. PTSD Insurance for Police Officers – GMA/ACCG Sponsored Program

Council Member Ramsey moved to authorize the City Manager to approve the 
pending contract with GMA/ACCG; Mayor pro tem Bordeaux seconded.

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett recommended City Council approve the 
agreement, adding that program enrollment is mandated. Mr. Beckett continued 
that the estimated cost is $148.00 per year per eligible employee.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 7 of 11

7. Out-of-Scope Recommended Improvements to Courthouse

Council Member Ramsey moved to approve the out-of-scope recommended 
improvements to the courthouse; Council Member Goldberg seconded.

Special Projects Manager Bernard Kendrick advised City Council of
recommended improvements to the courthouse discovered during the interior 
renovation. These improvements include repairs to the conference room ceiling
and Police Department awning, security and insulation, keyless door access, an 
additional recording module requested by the Court Department, winterization, 
and duct maintenance. The additional repairs totaled $34,789.77. As the interior 
Courthouse Renovation was completed $46,000~ under budget, the additional 
repairs would be completed using previously-allocated funds.

Mayor Hall added a recommendation of better exterior lighting for the facility at 
462 Pine Drive, citing safety concerns.

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett echoed Mayor Hall’s lighting concerns, adding 
that a project of similar purpose was taking place at City Hall with assistance 
from Georgia Power, and recommended reaching out. Mr. Beckett added a 
recommendation to update the generator outside of the Courthouse—which 
provides emergency power to both the Police Department and de facto shelter, 
the Pine Lake Clubhouse—as the current generator has exceeded its 
serviceable life.

A discussion took place regarding additional items suggested by City Council, 
Mr. Beckett, Chief of Police Y’hudah-Green.

Council Member Goldberg recommended that City Council approve the list of 
out-of-scope improvements recommended by Mr. Kendrick, suggesting they 
research and revisit the additional items at a later date.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 8 of 11

8. Acceptance of Withdrawal – Bid Submission, Oak Road

Council Member Ramsey moved to accept withdrawal of the bid; Council 
Member Goldberg seconded.

Special Projects Manager Bernard Kendrick corrected the original title of the 
item, stating that a bid had yet to be awarded. Mr. Kendrick continued that the 
contractor failed to properly review the bid, and lacked the expertise to perform 
the work. Mr. Kendrick, Interim City Manager Beckett, and the contractor had 
determined it was in the best interest of all parties that the contractor withdraw.

Council Member Torrent asked for confirmation that the contractor was seeking 
compensation, which was confirmed by Mr. Kendrick.

In response to a question from Council Member Ramsey regarding next steps, 
Mr. Kendrick suggested the best course of action would be to sit down with the 
second bidder, and discuss a change in the scope of work if necessary.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.

9. Adoption of 2025 City Council Meeting Calendar

Council Member Woods moved to adopt the 2025 City Council Meeting 
Calendar; Council Member Torrent seconded.

Council Member Torrent asked that the final meeting of the year (12/30/2025) be 
rescheduled to an earlier date. Mayor pro tem Bordeaux suggested 12/16/2025, 
and a consensus was observed.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 9 of 11

10.Request by City Manager to Close City Hall at 12:00PM on December 31, 
2024

Council Member Torrent moved to grant the request by the City Manager to 
close City Hall at 12:00PM on December 31, 2024; Council Member Ramsey 
seconded.

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett stated that it was his recommendation to allow 
staff to leave early on December 30th, 2024, citing that celebration of the New 
Years Day holiday often takes place the previous evening.

Following some discussion, City Council arrived at a consensus in support of Mr. 
Beckett’s suggestion.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.

11.Approval of Lease and Maintenance Agreement – Scanner/Copier – City 
Hall and Police Department

Council Member Ramsey moved to approve the Lease and Maintenance 
Agreement; Council Member Torrent seconded.

Mr. Beckett recommended approval of the agreement, stating that the current 
copier units in the Police Department and City Hall are beyond their useful and 
serviceable lives. The City, he continued, arrived at the recommendation of EGP 
Document Solutions following a competitive bid process.

Mayor Hall called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 10 of 11

Reports and Other Comments

Mayor

Mayor Hall thanked “tireless” staff for meeting challenges despite limited 
resources. The Mayor spoke directly to Interim City Manager Billy Beckett, 
expressing her gratitude for his guidance amid a tumultuous leadership change.

Mayor Hall continued by thanking exiting-City Attorney Susan Moore, citing a 
substantive tenure and legacy. The Mayor then turned to her compatriots on 
Council, asserting that they should “be very proud” of themselves.

City Council

All members of City Council echoed the Mayor’s sentiments.

Council Member Goldberg suggested that the Governing Authority schedule 
more town halls in the new year.

Council Member Ramsey thanked Chief Green for a “virtual code enforcement”
education, and thanked Mr. Kendrick for continued wetlands maintenance. Mr. 
Ramsey then noted the entering-City Attorney’s relationship with the City of 
Brookhaven, citing an ongoing lawsuit regarding property value assessment by 
the DeKalb County Tax Commissioner, expressing interest.

City Manager

Interim City Manager Billy Beckett expressed gratitude to the Mayor and City 
Council, as well as staff. Mr. Beckett summarized completed projects, and 
provided suggestions to the Governing Authority on how best to proceed on 
those initiatives still in progress. Those suggestions included diversification of 
revenue sources, and salary improvements for staff. Mr. Beckett concluded by 
lauding entering-City Manager Stanley Hawthorne’s experience, and by 
expressing a desire to “stay in touch.”



CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th, 2024 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Page 11 of 11

Adjournment

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux moved for adjournment at 7:32pm.

Ned Dagenhard
City Clerk or Delegate



Page 1 of 6

CITY OF PINE LAKE
WORK SESSION MINUTES

January 14th, 2025 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Call to Order: Mayor pro tem Bordeaux called the Work Session to order at 6:01pm.

Present: Mayor pro tem Bordeaux, Council Member Jeff Goldberg, Council 
Member Thomas Torrent, Council Member Tom Ramsey, and Council Member 
Augusta Woods. Also present were City Manager Stanley Hawthorne, Chief of 
Police Sarai Y’hudah-Green, City Attorney Chris Balch, and Assistant City Clerk 
Ned Dagenhard. Mayor Hall and Public Works Special Projects Manager 
Bernard Kendrick were not in attendance.

Announcements and Communications

Council Member Goldberg announced that the Pine Lake Association for 
Involved Neighbors would be hosting a recycling event the following Saturday.

Council Member Ramsey thanked Administrative Coordinator Missye Varner for 
her recovery of an existing resolution regarding domestic partnerships.

Adoption of the Agenda of the Day

Council Member Torrent moved to adopt the Agenda of the Day; Council 
Member Ramsey seconded.

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux advised that New Business items 2 and 3 were added 
to the agenda late (revised agenda was immediately republished).

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux called for a vote.

All members voted in favor, and the motion carried.



Page 2 of 6

CITY OF PINE LAKE
WORK SESSION MINUTES

January 14th, 2025 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

New Business

1. Introduction of City Attorney Chris Balch

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux invited City Attorney Chris Balch to introduce himself.

Mr. Balch expressed gratitude in the Governing Authority’s confidence in 
allowing him to serve in his respective role. Mr. Balch continued that it was his 
first mission to develop an understanding of policy priorities, adding that he 
knows the previous two City Attorneys for Pine Lake and recognizes he has “big 
shoes to fill.”

Council Member Ramsey inquired about litigation between the City of 
Brookhaven and the DeKalb Tax Assessor’s Office. Mr. Balch advised that that 
issue had not arisen to a lawsuit.

Council Member Goldberg thanked Mr. Balch for taking a private meeting with 
him, and encouraged other Council Members to request the same.

All members of the body thanked and welcomed the new City Attorney.

No action was taken by City Council.

2. H.B. 581, Statewide Homestead Exemption – Discussion

A discussion took place, wherein City Attorney Chris Balch explained the purpose, 
mechanism, and potential ramifications of HB 581. City Attorney Balch explained 
that the General Assembly had not provided clear direction for setting Public 
Hearing schedules should the City choose to opt-out of the Statewide Homestead 
Exemption. It was Mr. Balch’s suggestion, he continued, that the City use the 
model set forth by the millage rate adoption process. 

A discussion ensued as to when Public Hearings ought to take place, considering 
the March 1st, 2025 deadline for filing necessary documentation with the Secretary 
of State’s office. The suggestion was put forth that the hearings be scheduled for 
January 28th at 7:00PM; February 11th at 11:00AM; and February 11th at 
6:00PM. A consensus of City Council was observed 

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux proposed following City Attorney Balch’s 
recommendation for providing Public Hearing notice via the City’s official news 
organ (The DeKalb Champion); a consensus of City Council was observed.

No further action was taken by City Council



Page 3 of 6

CITY OF PINE LAKE
WORK SESSION MINUTES

January 14th, 2025 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

3. Domestic Partners Resolution Update

Council Member Ramsey introduced the topic, stating that he had been 
approached by residents intending to utilize Domestic Partnership certification to 
solve an issue related to healthcare coverage. Mr. Ramsey continued that 
multiple DeKalb County cities offer this service. Upon requesting City 
Administration to research in preparation for a resolution, an existing resolution 
was discovered, filed physically at City Hall.

Council Member Torrent offered his support for the resolution, suggesting that an 
ordinance and/or Charter amendment may be more appropriate. In response to 
this, City Attorney Balch suggested that an ordinance was the most appropriate 
vehicle given the timeline associated with Charter amendments.

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux suggested preparing an ordinance for the next regular 
session.

Council Member Ramsey asked the City Attorney if the existing resolution could 
be utilized by the aforementioned residents, and Mr. Balch responded in the 
affirmative.

No action was taken by City Council.



Page 4 of 6

CITY OF PINE LAKE
WORK SESSION MINUTES

January 14th, 2025 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

4. Cost-of-Living Adjustments (COLA) for Regular Employees

Council Member Torrent spoke first on the issue, in support of a COLA, as well 
as merit-based raises and/or bonuses for staff.

Council Member Woods echoed Mr. Torrent’s comments.

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux suggested verifying the 3% increase figure listed in the 
supplemental document, which was echoed by Council Member Ramsey, who 
cited the 2.5% figure published by the Social Security Administration.

City Manager Stanley Hawthorne advised the Governing Authority that no COLA 
had taken place at the beginning had been offered at the beginning of 2024. In 
response to this, Council Member Torrent suggested the 3% figure may be 
insufficient.

City Manager Stanley Hawthorne then spoke at some length in support of 
increases in compensation overall, citing concern over staff retention.

A discussion took place regarding the timeline for adoption of a 2025 COLA and 
further discussion of increases in staff compensation.

No action was taken by City Council.

5. Communications Plan & Policy – Discussion of Tactical Next Steps (For 
example, setting up a Facebook page, who will be able to post on it, what’s 
happening with the recordings of broadcasted meetings, etc.)

City Council discussed tactical next steps, specifically preferences surrounding 
social media communication and interfacing with the public (i.e. dialogue, 
comments).

Further discussion took place regarding delegation of social media management 
responsibilities, to be housed within the Administration Department.

Positive sentiments were expressed regarding the City’s implementation of “live-
streaming” City Council Meetings on YouTube, with the added action items of
troubleshooting technical issues and publishing meeting links to the Pine Lake 
website, and eventual the yet-to-be-created Pine Lake Facebook account.

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux suggested to the rest of City Council that the 
Communications Policy acts as a living document to be amended and re-
adopted as needed.



Page 5 of 6

CITY OF PINE LAKE
WORK SESSION MINUTES

January 14th, 2025 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Council Member Goldberg suggested that the Governing Authority be intentional 
and strategic with implementation of the Communication Policy, and thanked the 
Administration Department for their continued efforts.

No action was taken by City Council.

Reports and Other Business

Public Safety – Chief Sarai Y’hudah-Green

The supplemental report presented is available to the public upon request. 
Please contact Asst. City Clerk Ned Dagenhard at (404) 999-4901 or 
neddagenhard@pinelakega.net for more information.

Public Works – Special Projects Manager Bernard Kendrick

The supplemental report presented is available to the public upon request. 
Please contact Asst. City Clerk Ned Dagenhard at (404) 999-4901 or 
neddagenhard@pinelakega.net for more information.

City Council

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux expressed appreciation to City Council and staff, 
describing a “very productive meeting.”

Council Member Torrent echoed earlier comments made regarding Corporal 
Andrew Atkins of the Pine Lake Police Department, who responded to a welfare 
check on foot due to unsafe road conditions. Mr. Torrent reasserted the
suggestion that all members of the City of Pine Lake organization be trained in 
first amendment rights as a safeguard against predatory lawsuits. Mr. Torrent 
also thanked Public Works for their continued wetlands maintenance efforts,
stating that increased visibility would help address functional issues related to 
the wetland pipe and flume network. Mr. Torrent concluded his comments by 
welcoming new staff.

Council Members Woods and Ramsey echoed Council Member Torrent’s 
comments and welcome.

Council Member Goldberg thanked City Manager Hawthorne, and expressed 
excitement and optimism at Pine Lake being fully-staffed.



Page 6 of 6

CITY OF PINE LAKE
WORK SESSION MINUTES

January 14th, 2025 at 6:00 PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA

Adjournment

Council Member Ramsey moved for adjournment at 8:02pm.

Ned Dagenhard
City Clerk or Delegate





CITY OF PINE LAKE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 17th,2024at6:00PM
Pine Lake Courthouse

459 PineDrive,PineLake,GA

Page 11of 11

Adjournment

Mayor pro tem Bordeauxmoved for adjournment at 7:32pm.

NedDagenhard
CityClerkor Delegate























































































 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
57

 
O

AK
 R

O
AD

 P
RO

JE
CT

 
 B

AS
E 

BI
D 

AL
TE

RN
AT

E 
1

AD
DI

TI
O

N
AL

 
W

O
RK

TO
TA

L C
O

ST
S

 
 

 
29

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
    

    
 

$5
0,

00
0.

00
 

$3
45

,0
00

.0
0

 
$4

0,
36

0.
00

$4
0,

36
0.

00

CI
TY

 O
F 

PI
NE

 LA
KE

$4
,4

36
.9

1
 

JO
RD

AN
 TO

M
ES

CH
$1

2,
50

0.
61

 
AL

AN
 G

O
RD

O
N

$2
3,

42
2.

48

TO
TA

L
$3

85
,3

60
.0

0



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A BID IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $345,000 FROM CONSTRUCTION 57 FOR MAINTENANCE ON OAK ROAD 

WHEREAS, The City issued a Request for Proposals for this project and seeking sealed bids 
from interested contractors; and  

WHEREAS, The lowest bidder was unresponsive and withdrew from consideration for the 
project; and 

WHEREAS, The Governing Authority of the City authorized the Public Works Director to 
negotiate a project resolution with the next lowest bidder; and

WHEREAS, A revised contract and scope of work has been negotiated with Construction 57 for 
work on Oak Road ; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the governing authority of the City of Pine 
Lake, Georgia, that the Mayor is authorized to execute a contract with Construction 57 in the 
amount of $357,000 for maintenance on Oak Road under the terms and conditions of the Request 
for Proposal as modified in negotiations by the Public Works Director. 

ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pine Lake, this 28th day of January, 
2025. 

     
  BRANDY HALL
  Mayor 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

     
NED DAGENHARD  CHRISTOPHER D. BALCH 
Assistant City Clerk    City Attorney
 
 
 


